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FORT ROUGE PARK est. 1893

Referred to as ornamental squares, breathing spaces or 

“the lungs for the city”, parks – in all their forms – have 

been an integral part of Winnipeg’s history even before 

it incorporated in 1874.

“The policy in all civilized countries is to reserve large areas of land where the citizens of 

all classes can escape from the noise and smoke of the crowded streets for pure air and 

recreation.”  - City of Winnipeg Engineer H.N. Ruttan, 1892

Winnipeg’s Public Parks Board was established in 

January 1893, the Mayor and Council fully accepting the 

responsibility to create a first-class parks system. The 
Board organized a Saturday afternoon driving tour to 

“examine suitable locations for Parks” from the dozens 

of city sites offered by land-owners.

By the end of 1893, the City had purchased eight sites 

and immediately developed the first four: Victoria and 
Central in the downtown and Fort Rouge and St. John’s 

in the suburbs.

The legacy of these early efforts and the foresight shown 

is rightly celebrated 125 years later.

125 Years of Winnipeg Parks 1893-2018
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Fort Rouge Park was the first park purchased by the Parks Board in 
1893 – 2.0 hectares of land costing $16,500. The property was much 
different than the empty prairie landscape of the other early parks 

because its mature trees and fertile soil required less initial work to 

create the lush landscape that included formal gardens and tree-lined 

paths.

It was originally known as Assiniboine Park but was renamed Fort 

Rouge Park in December 1904 with the development of Assiniboine 

Park on the west side of the city.

Also located in the park was the City’s first nursery and greenhouse, 
providing bedding plants and seedling trees for the other public parks 

and city lands. In 1897, a natural arbour or gazebo with circular seating 

was built overlooking the river and a dock provided river access.  Skating 

rinks were cleared on the Assiniboine River in the winter.

1.Original design of Fort Rouge Park (c.1895)
Tribune August 8, 1895 

2. “Fort Rouge Park in Winter”
Giles Bugailiskis Collection.  Date unknown

3. “A view through the trees”
Giles Bugailiskis Collection.  Date unknown

4. Planted traffic island
City of Winnipeg Archives c. 1910

5. “A glimpse in Fort Rouge Park”
City of Winnipeg Archives 1908 A 54/33/4

2.

3.

4.

5.

1.

Locations are shown on the map above of the four parks originally 

purchased by the Winnipeg Parks Board in 1893.  Victoria Park is no 
longer a park, however St. John’s Park, Central Park and Fort Rouge 

Park can all be visited today.  Fort Rouge Park and St. John’s Park were 

located in the “suburbs” whereas Central Park and Victoria Park were 
located in the “urban core”.
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Fort Rouge Park 

(295 River Avenue)

Victoria Park
(Current day 310 Waterfront Drive)

Central Park

(400 Cumberland Avenue)

St. John’s Park

(1 Fowler Street)

CENTRAL PARK est. 1893

Referred to as ornamental squares, breathing spaces or 

“the lungs for the city”, parks – in all their forms – have 

been an integral part of Winnipeg’s history even before 

it incorporated in 1874.

“The policy in all civilized countries is to reserve large areas of land where the citizens of 

all classes can escape from the noise and smoke of the crowded streets for pure air and 

recreation.”  - City of Winnipeg Engineer H.N. Ruttan, 1892

Winnipeg’s Public Parks Board was established in 

January 1893, the Mayor and Council fully accepting the 

responsibility to create a first-class parks system. The 
Board was offered dozens of city sites by land-owners 

and even organized a Saturday afternoon driving tour to 

“examine suitable locations for Parks.”

By the end of 1893, the City had purchased eight sites 

and immediately developed the first four : Victoria and 
Central in the downtown and Fort Rouge and St. John’s 

in the suburbs.

The legacy of these early efforts and the foresight shown 

is rightly celebrated 125 years later.
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C e n t r a l  p a r k  e s t  1 8 9 3

125 Years of Winnipeg Parks 1893-2018
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The original 1.4-hectare site that was purchased from the Hudson’s Bay 
Company for $20,000 was named Central Park after nearby Central 

Congregational Church. Its swampy landscape required thousands of 

loads of manure and soil for base.

The park opened with wide straight paths forming an “X”, formal 

gardens  and extensive tree plantings. A fashionable residential district 

with beautiful houses, cottages and apartment buildings quickly 

developed around the park.

A bandstand in the south end and two tennis courts were added in 

1905 and Waddell Fountain was completed at the north end in 1914. 

During the Great Depression of the 1930s, the park was often the 

site of popular community singsongs. 

The park was ultimately extended south of Qu’Appelle Avenue and 

continues to be a popular recreational area.

1.Cinder pathways
Winnipeg Archives c. 1910 A861

2. Children in the park
Winnipeg Archives A54/19/14

3. Planted traffic island  & bench
Giles Bugailiskis Collection.  Date unknown

4. Waddell Fountain & Knox Church
City of Winipeg Archives .  Date unknown

5. Straight paths forming an “X” 
Giles Bugailiskis Collection.  Date unknown

6. Bandstand at south end of park
Giles Bugailiskis Collection..  Date unknown

3.

4.

5.

6.

1. 2.

Locations are shown on the map above of the four parks originally 

purchased by the Winnipeg Parks Board in 1893.  Victoria Park is no 
longer a park, however St. John’s Park, Central Park and Fort Rouge 

Park can all be visited today.  Fort Rouge Park and St. John’s Park were 

located in the “suburbs” whereas Central Park and Victoria Park were 
located in the “urban core”.
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Fort Rouge Park 

(295 River Avenue)

Victoria Park
(Current day 310 Waterfront Drive)

Central Park

(400 Cumberland Avenue)

St. John’s Park

(1 Fowler Street)

ST.JOHN’S PARK est. 1893

Referred to as ornamental squares, breathing spaces or 

“the lungs for the city”, parks – in all their forms – have 

been an integral part of Winnipeg’s history even before 

it incorporated in 1874.

“The policy in all civilized countries is to reserve large areas of land where the citizens of 

all classes can escape from the noise and smoke of the crowded streets for pure air and 

recreation.”  - City of Winnipeg Engineer H.N. Ruttan, 1892

Winnipeg’s Public Parks Board was established in 

January 1893, the Mayor and Council fully accepting the 

responsibility to create a first-class parks system. The 
Board was offered dozens of city sites by land-owners 

and even organized a Saturday afternoon driving tour to 

“examine suitable locations for Parks.”

By the end of 1893, the City had purchased eight sites 

and immediately developed the first four : Victoria and 
Central in the downtown and Fort Rouge and St. John’s 

in the suburbs.

The legacy of these early efforts and the foresight shown 

is rightly celebrated 125 years later.
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125 Years of Winnipeg Parks 1893-2018

According to an early Parks Board Report, this location, when purchased 

from the Anglican Church, “was destitute of trees; the land was wild, 

but fertile.” 

The price for the 4.2 hectares site was $15,000 – the cheapest land 
per acre of the original four parks. Work began in 1894 based on the 

design of local architect Henry Sandham Griffith (1865-1943) and 
would include a formal garden in a six-pointed star shape with radiating 

pathways. A wood bandstand was also built.

By the 1920s, visitors were able to stroll along manicured lawns, beds 

of perennial flowers, a wide variety of trees and shrubs and enjoy a 
riverbank walkway.  Lawn bowling greens and a wading pool were also 

added to increase use of the park. 

Although some of these facilities have disappeared, the park is still an 

important part of the community.

1.“A Quiet Corner in St.John’s Park”
Winnipeg Archives 1910 A57/23/18

2. “St.John’s Park Extension 1938”
City of Winnipeg Archives A57/25/2 ca. 1938 

3. Cycling in the park
Giles Bugailiskis Collection.  Date unknown

4. Bandstand in the park
Rob McInnes Collection.  Date unknown

5. Six-pointed star formal garden
Giles Bugailiskis Collection.  Date unknown

6. Formal gardens in park
Giles Bugailiskis Collection..  Date unknown

3.

4.

5.

6.

1. 2.
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CENTRAL PARK est. 1893

Referred to as ornamental squares, breathing spaces or 

“the lungs for the city”, parks – in all their forms – have 

been an integral part of Winnipeg’s history even before 

it incorporated in 1874.

“The policy in all civilized countries is to reserve large areas of land where the citizens of 

all classes can escape from the noise and smoke of the crowded streets for pure air and 

recreation.”  - City of Winnipeg Engineer H.N. Ruttan, 1892

Winnipeg’s Public Parks Board was established in 

January 1893, the Mayor and Council fully accepting the 

responsibility to create a first-class parks system. The 
Board was offered dozens of city sites by land-owners 

and even organized a Saturday afternoon driving tour to 

“examine suitable locations for Parks.”

By the end of 1893, the City had purchased eight sites 

and immediately developed the first four : Victoria and 
Central in the downtown and Fort Rouge and St. John’s 

in the suburbs.

The legacy of these early efforts and the foresight shown 

is rightly celebrated 125 years later.
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125 Years of Winnipeg Parks 1893-2018

ST.JOHN’S PARK est. 1893

Referred to as ornamental squares, breathing spaces or 

“the lungs for the city”, parks – in all their forms – have 

been an integral part of Winnipeg’s history even before 

it incorporated in 1874.

“The policy in all civilized countries is to reserve large areas of land where the citizens of 

all classes can escape from the noise and smoke of the crowded streets for pure air and 

recreation.”  - City of Winnipeg Engineer H.N. Ruttan, 1892

Winnipeg’s Public Parks Board was established in 

January 1893, the Mayor and Council fully accepting the 

responsibility to create a first-class parks system. The 
Board was offered dozens of city sites by land-owners 

and even organized a Saturday afternoon driving tour to 

“examine suitable locations for Parks.”

By the end of 1893, the City had purchased eight sites 

and immediately developed the first four : Victoria and 
Central in the downtown and Fort Rouge and St. John’s 

in the suburbs.

The legacy of these early efforts and the foresight shown 

is rightly celebrated 125 years later.
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125 Years of Winnipeg Parks 1893-2018

FORT ROUGE PARK est. 1893

Referred to as ornamental squares, breathing spaces or 

“the lungs for the city”, parks – in all their forms – have 

been an integral part of Winnipeg’s history even before 

it incorporated in 1874.

“The policy in all civilized countries is to reserve large areas of land where the citizens of 

all classes can escape from the noise and smoke of the crowded streets for pure air and 

recreation.”  - City of Winnipeg Engineer H.N. Ruttan, 1892

Winnipeg’s Public Parks Board was established in 

January 1893, the Mayor and Council fully accepting the 

responsibility to create a first-class parks system. The 
Board organized a Saturday afternoon driving tour to 

“examine suitable locations for Parks” from the dozens 

of city sites offered by land-owners.

By the end of 1893, the City had purchased eight sites 

and immediately developed the first four : Victoria and 
Central in the downtown and Fort Rouge and St. John’s 

in the suburbs.

The legacy of these early efforts and the foresight shown 

is rightly celebrated 125 years later.

125 Years of Winnipeg Parks 1893-2018
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6"

FRONT ELEVATION - FORT ROUGE PARK

3'
-0

"
3'

-4
"

1"
1"

2'
-0

"

PLAN

2'-6"

CORTEN STEEL W/ GRILLE PLATE CUT OUTS 
W/ FROSTED LEXAN BACKING ON ALL 3 
SIDES.  SEE DETAIL 4/L 2.1.  ARTWORK TO 
BE PROVIDED BY CONTRACT 
ADMINISTRATOR.  SHOP DRAWINGS 
REQUIRED PRIOR TO FABRICATION.

COLOUR PRINTED INTERPRETIVE PANELS ON HIGH 
PRESSURE LAMINATE C/W TACTILE & NON-TACTILE 
LETTERING.  ARTWORK TO BE PROVIDED BY 
CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.  SEE DETAIL 2/L 2.0 
FOR LAYOUT AND SAMPLE ARTWORK.

CORTEN STEEL PANELS. 
SEE DETAIL 4/L 2.1 AND 
REFER TO STRUCTURAL.

CONCRETE BASE.  
REFER TO STRUCTURAL

2

L 2.0
SAMPLE ARTWORK
SCALE: 1:30

6"

FRONT ELEVATION - ST.JOHN'S PARK

3'
-0

"
3'

-4
"

1"
1"
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"

6"

FRONT ELEVATION - ST.JOHN'S PARK

3'
-0

"
3'

-4
"

1"
1"

2'
-0

"

2'-6" 2'-6" 2'-6"

NOTE:  ORIENTATION OF ALL PANELS TO BE 
APPROVED BY CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR 
PRIOR TO INSTALLATION.

FRONT

2'
-0

"

2'-6"

SIDE BACK
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L 2.0
SIGN ELEVATIONS
SCALE: 1:30

FORT ROUGE PARK

FRONT

2'
-0

"

2'-6"

SIDE BACK

ST. JOHN'S PARK

FRONT

2'
-0

"

2'-6"

SIDE BACK

CENTRAL PARK

SOLAR LIGHT W/ SIGN COVER.   
SEE DETAIL 1/L 2.1 AND  
REFER TO STRUCTRUAL.

NON-TACTILE LETTERING 
THROUGHOUT EXCEPT WHERE 
SHOWN ON FRONT PANEL FOR 
EACH PARK ONLY.

TACTILE LETTERING FOR 
"FORT ROUGE PARK EST.1893 
AS WELL AS  BRAILLE FONT. 
FRONT PANEL ONLY FOR EACH 
PARK.


